

SECULAR ORDER OF DISCALCED CARMELITES

Peace of Christ Community, Christchurch

# Newsletter

Number 300, March 2024

#### <u>Carmel OCDS Community Meeting</u> Sunday 3 March 2024

### 12:00pm Formation Groups

#### 1pm Community Meeting

Welcome & opening prayers Roll call & apologies Minutes of previous meeting Treasurer's report, Correspondence General business, General discussion Closing prayers

**1:45pm Community Formation** St Thérèse of Lisieux: "Story of a Soul" (Community Study: See Newsletter, pp.2-3)

#### 2:30pm Father's Teaching

*Divine Office in Chapel* <u>Leader</u>: Marian, <u>Reader</u>: Megan

Afternoon Tea <u>Prep. & Serving</u>: Pat C. & Karen <u>Dishes</u>: Christine & Claire



<u>Bethany Day</u> Tuesday 19 March 2024 (10:30am – 1:00pm) 10:30am Morning Tea 11:00am DVD 11:45am Chapel – Quiet Prayer 12:15pm BYO Lunch

#### **Birthdays**

Therese

Marian

Pat

\*

Sunday 3 March Monday 4 March Sunday 24 March

NZ OCDS Website: www.carmel.org.nz

March: Dedicated to St Joseph Husband of Mary, Patron of Carmel, Feast Day: 19 March

Dear brothers and sisters in Carmel,

**Lent** – a time of contemplating the betrayal, suffering, and crucifixion of our beloved Lord and Master.

The following prayer, from our holy mother St Teresa of Jesus, you may find helpful as we join Jesus in His journey to Calvary:

"Most glorious King, You made me in Your divine image and desire that my soul shine brightly like a diamond, gleaming in the bright Sun which radiates from within. Grant me the grace to look inwardly and to see You dwelling within. Help me, as I begin this journey, to look beyond my sin so that I may see myself as You created me. As I do, help me to also see the sin that darkens the brightness of this castle of my soul.

Indwelling of the Most Holy Trinity, I love You, I trust You, I surrender my life to you." (St Teresa)

The Friars who brought us the *"Our Father"* series now offer us *"Journey Towards Easter With the Psalms"*, online Lenten retreat on: <u>www.carmelite.uk.net/lent/journey-towards-easter-with-the-psalms/</u> Recommend this highly.

Blessings, Mary O'Boyle, OCDS (President, Peace of Christ Community, Christchurch)



March quote from St Teresa of Jesus:

"In our time Our Lady has helped us comprehend and love her dear and chaste husband, St Joseph. She has told us of the mystery surrounding him and of his greatness. She has let us know something of her love for St Joseph, that most lovable saint who for years held the Word made flesh in his arms."







## READING OF THE WRITINGS OF THÉRÈSE OF THE CHILD JESUS (2024: MANUSCRIPTS B&C) Text 2: The Eagle and the little bird (Ms B, 4v-5v)

#### Suggestion for the Community meeting:

- 1. Read the text together.
- 2. One of those present, having prepared a contribution in advance, discusses the text using the commentary (and other aids, if necessary).
- Community dialogue on the text. It would be helpful to have made individual readings and reflections on Thérèse's text before the community meeting.

#### MANUSCRIPT B, 4v-5v

How can a soul as imperfect as mine aspire to the possession of the plenitude of Love? O Jesus, my first and only Friend, You whom I love UNIQUELY, explain this mystery to me! Why do You not reserve these great aspirations for great souls, for the Eagles that soar in the heights?

I look upon myself as a weak little bird, with only a light down as covering. I am not an eagle, but I have an eagle's EYES AND HEART. In spite of my extreme littleness I still dare to gaze upon the Divine Sun, the Sun of Love, and my heart feels within it all the aspirations of an Eagle.

The little bird wills to fly toward the bright Sun that attracts its eye, imitating its brothers, the eagles, whom it sees climbing up toward the Divine Furnace of the Holy Trinity. But alas! the only thing it can do is raise its little wings; to fly is not within its little power! What then will become of it? Will it die of sorrow at seeing itself so weak? Oh no! the little bird will not even be troubled. With bold surrender, it wishes to remain gazing upon its Divine Sun. Nothing will frighten it, neither wind nor rain, and if dark clouds come and hide the Star of Love, the little bird will not change its place, because it knows that beyond the clouds its bright Sun still shines on and that its brightness is not eclipsed for a single instant.

At times the little bird's heart is assailed by the storm, and it seems it should believe in the existence of no other thing except the clouds surrounding it; this is the moment of perfect joy for the poor little weak creature. And what joy it experiences when remaining there just the same! and gazing at the Invisible Light which remains hidden from its faith!

O Jesus, up until the present moment I can understand Your love for the little bird because it has not strayed far from You. But I know and so do You that very often the imperfect little creature, while remaining in its place (that is, under the Sun's rays), allows itself to be somewhat distracted from its sole occupation. It picks up a piece of grain on the right or on the left; it chases after a little worm; then coming upon a little pool of water, it wets its feathers still hardly formed. It sees an attractive flower and its little mind is occupied with this flower. In a word, being unable to soar like the eagles, the poor little bird is taken up with the trifles of earth.

And yet, after all these misdeeds, instead of going and hiding away in a corner, to weep over its misery and to die of sorrow, the little bird turns toward its beloved Sun, presenting its wet wings to its beneficent rays. It cries like a swallow and in its sweet song it recounts in detail all its infidelities, thinking in the boldness of its full trust that it will acquire in even greater fullness the love of Him who came to call not the just but sinners. And even if the Adorable Star remains deaf to the plaintive chirping of the little creature, even if it remains hidden, well, the little one will remain wet, accepting its numbness from the cold and rejoicing in its suffering which it knows it deserves.

O Jesus, Your little bird is happy to be weak and little. What would become of it if it were big? Never would it have the boldness to appear in Your presence, to fall asleep in front of You. Yes, this is still one of the weaknesses of the little bird: when it wants to fix its gaze upon the Divine Sun, and when the clouds prevent it from seeing a single ray of that Sun, in spite of itself, its little eyes close, its little head is hidden beneath its wing, and the poor little thing falls asleep, believing all the time that it is fixing its gaze upon its Dear Star. When it awakens, it doesn't feel desolate; its little heart is at peace and it begins once again its work of love. It calls upon the angels and saints who rise like eagles before the consuming Fire, and since this is the object of the little bird's desire the eagles take pity on it, protecting and defending it, and putting to flight at the same time the vultures who want to devour it.

These vultures are the demons whom the little bird doesn't fear, for it is not destined to be their prey but the prey of the Eagle whom it contemplates in the center of the Sun of Love.

O Divine Word! You are the Adored Eagle whom I love and who alone attracts me! Coming into this land of exile, You willed to suffer and to die in order to draw souls to the bosom of the Eternal Fire of the Blessed Trinity. Ascending once again to the Inaccessible Light, henceforth Your abode, You remain still in this "valley of tears," hidden beneath the appearances of a white host. Eternal Eagle, You desire to nourish me with Your divine substance and yet I am but a poor little thing who would return to nothingness if Your divine glance did not give me life from one moment to the next. O Jesus, allow me in my boundless gratitude to say to You that Your love reaches unto folly. In the presence of this folly, how can You not desire that my heart leap toward You? How can my confidence, then, have any limits? Ah! the saints have committed their follies for You, and they have done great things because they are eagles.

Jesus, I am too little to perform great actions, and my own folly is this: to trust that Your Love will accept me as a victim. My folly consists in begging the eagles, my brothers, to obtain for me the favour of flying toward the Sun of Love with the Divine Eagle's own wings!

As long as You desire it, O my Beloved, Your little bird will remain without strength and without wings and will always stay with its gaze fixed upon You. It wants to be fascinated by Your divine glance. It wants to become the prey of Your Love. One day I hope that You, the Adorable Eagle, will come to fetch me, Your little bird; and ascending with it to the Furnace of Love, You will plunge it for all eternity into the burning Abyss of this Love to which it has offered itself as victim.

O Jesus! why can't I tell all little souls how unspeakable is Your condescension? I feel that if You found a soul weaker and littler than mine, which is impossible, You would be pleased to grant it still greater favours, provided it abandoned itself with total confidence to Your Infinite Mercy. But why do I desire to communicate Your secrets of Love, O Jesus, for was it not You alone who taught them to me, and can You not reveal them to others? Yes, I know it, and I beg You to do it. I beg You to cast Your Divine Glance upon a great number of little souls.

I beg You to choose a legion of little Victims worthy of Your LOVE!

#### The very little Sister Thérèse of the Child Jesus and the Holy Face

#### Introduction to the text:

Thérèse is questioning herself anew: Is this love really in her heart? The parable of the little bird illuminates this dilemma experienced in the night of faith; faith remains the only path, and it is in faith that this crazy love is lived. So, the dark images, the storm, do not distress Thérèse; on the contrary, for her they are the cause of perfect joy; she draws her joy and happiness from her night. This first time of joy consists of being able to name the depth of the darkness in which she finds herself, of being able to have a completely lucid awareness of it. There is then the lasting reality of happiness, as the fruit of a will and an enduring patience.

'The Eagles and the little bird' (Ms. B, 4v): almost the entire end of manuscript B is devoted to the parable contrasting 'the great souls, the Eagles' with 'the little souls', represented by 'the little bird' (never in the plural).

The images of the eagle and the little bird doubtless come firstly from the book of the 'Life' (particularly in Chapter 20) of Saint Teresa of Jesus. We can also take note of the classification of the three kinds of prayer made by Father Lemonnier during a retreat at the Carmel of Lisieux in 1894; firstly, the Eagles, then the doves, then the baby chicks. We should not forget the Bible, particularly Deuteronomy 32:11, Exodus 19:4, as well as Isaiah 40:29-31.

'Raise its little wings' (Ms. B, 5r): an analogous expression to 'lift one's little foot'.

'The invisible light' (Ms. B, 5r): Thérèse has entered the night of faith, and the night will become more dense during the following winter (her last).

'To doze in front of you' (Ms. B, 5r): deprived of sleep by a rhythm of life that did not meet the needs of a young sister, Thérèse had very soon started dozing off during silent prayer. In 1893, she depicted herself, in a fresco painted in the Oratory, with the appearance of a sleeping angel.

'As long as you desire it' (Ms. B, 5v): The expression of Thérèse's heroism, whose love did not want to hasten the time fixed by Jesus for their meeting.

'To a great number of little souls' (Ms. B, 5v): Here, Thérèse, who up to now had only been speaking in her own name, made her message universal.

### For the community dialogue:

- 1. *What is the text saying?* Understanding the content and initial meaning of Thérèse's text.
- 2. What does the text say to us today? Discern the presentday relevance (social, ecclesial, spiritual...) of the text.
- 3. What does the text say to me / us? Consider the personal and community relevance of the text.

The purpose of this process is to allow Thérèse to speak to us herself, to question and encourage us, and to open us up to her clarifying and confirming our own personal and community path. The questions suggested are only indicative, and could perhaps be used in individual meditation and community sharing.

#### Questions:

- 1. How should we name the stages passed by the little bird? What realities are there to undermine her confidence? What does she choose regardless?
- 2. Thérèse depends on self-abasing Love, on the prayer of others (the saints), and on her engagement in prayer for others. Can I testify to the link between these three dimensions in my own prayer-life? What does Thérèse ask for us?
- 3. Thérèse experiences here even more deeply both the experience of sinners and little ones, and the power of the Love that abases itself for all. What is the moving force for us of our missionary desires?

## **Prayers for March**

*Thank-you, Lord, for all the blessings you give us each day.* **We pray for**:

- Our Holy Father, Pope Francis, Archbishop Paul, SM, Bishop Michael, all our priests, religious and seminarians, and the welfare of our diocese
- Our Provincial, Fr Jim Noonan, OCD, our General, Fr Miguel Márquez Calle, OCD and all our Carmel family, especially our Carmelite Sisters. Also, vocations to Carmel and to our own Peace of Christ Community (*Please offer a decade of the rosary daily for this, as requested by Bishop Greg Homeming, OCD.*)

#### Special Intentions:

- All the people of the Middle East and the Ukraine, suffering from the terrors of war
- Our dear Carmelite Sisters, especially Sr Teresa of Jesus, Sr Elizabeth and Sr Dorothea
- Fr Jérôme, OCD and our Goma mission
- Fr Michael-Thérèse, Fr Antoine and CSJ
- Fr Philip, CSJ and the University Chaplaincy Team
- Our Special Members, especially Dorothea, Stephanie, Rosaline and Peb
- John Paul II Centre for Life and prayers for life
- Bishop Michael has asked us to pray a daily 'Hail Mary' for vocations and for our seminarians
- Matthew Clark, from our Diocese, joining the seminary
- Those who have died recently and the consolation of their families
- Those who have asked for, or need our prayers, especially Fr Deeney, OCD, Fr Arsène, Claire's brother, Michael (seriously ill with a lung infection), Megan's brothers, Randall (increased fluid on the brain) and Greg (broken back and dislocated neck), and Lyn's cousin, Neil (knee replacement)

#### Our Holy Father's Intentions for March:

• We pray that those who **risk their lives** for the Gospel in various parts of the world inflame the Church with their courage and missionary enthusiasm [new martyrs].

#### **OUR MISSIONS PROJECT**

Excerpt from "Echo from Africa & Other Continents" (Nov.- Dec. 2023, p.7)

"Many... in Goma and North Kivu... perceive life as tasteless and meaningless. They themselves feel they are being treated like tasteless food to be thrown away and they live their lives in darkness. Through our compassion, through our humble service in Jesus' name, we hope that many people will experience Christ and find new meaning and flavour in their lives." **Cardinal Tagle**, papal envoy



In 1554, St Teresa of Jesus had her second conversion. In a vision she saw Christ in his passion and was moved and asked, **what can I do for the Lord?** 



Congratulations to two of our members who celebrated special birthdays last month: Dorothea celebrated her 95<sup>th</sup> birthday (photo above), and Eddie celebrated his 90<sup>th</sup> birthday!

#### GOD HAS A PURPOSE FOR CALLING US TO THIS VOCATION Fr Deeney, OCD

In the discernment of a vocation within the Church and within the Order, there are always two questions that need to be asked.

Why do you want to be a Carmelite?

...we each have an individual response to that question.

#### The second question is,

Why does GOD want you to be a Carmelite? ...the answer to this question is not personal and individual. It is "institutional" in the sense that the answer comes from outside the person. The answer comes from the Order. This second question and answer purify our personal motives and perfects them so that what God wants is done. It is a lifelong process.

Blessings in Carmel, Megan (Formator to OCDS Peace of Christ Community)

The Seal of Carmel: "Zelo zelatus sum pro Domino Deo exercituum" "With zeal have I been zealous for the Lord God of hosts"